
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR SESSION AGENDA
Monday, May 24, 2021 - 7:00 PM

City Hall, Council Chambers, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport , OR 97365

This will be a hybrid meeting, which means that it will be held electronically, via Zoom, with a
limited number of people (up to 15) allowed to attend in-person. The meeting will be
live-streamed at https://newportoregon.gov, and broadcast on Charter Channel 190.

Anyone interested in making public comment is allowed to attend in-person, subject to
congregant limitations (up to 15).

Anyone wishing to provide real-time, virtual public comment should make a request at least four 
hours prior to the meeting, at publiccomment@newportoregon.gov, and request the Zoom
meeting information.

Anyone wishing to provide written public comment should send the comment to
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. The e-mail must be received at least four hours prior to
the scheduled meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting, and
pursuant to the municipal code.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Jim Patrick, Bill Branigan, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Jim Hanselman, Gary East, and
Braulio Escobar. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

2.A Approval of  the Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes of
May 10, 2021.

1

https://newportoregon.gov
mailto:publiccomment@newportoregon.gov
mailto:publiccomment@newportoregon.gov


Draft PC Reg Session Minutes 05-10-2021

3. CITIZENS/PUBLIC COMMENT
A Public Comment Roster is available immediately inside the Council Chambers.  Anyone
who would like to address the Planning Commission on any matter not on the agenda will
be given the opportunity after signing the Roster.  Each speaker should limit comments
to three minutes.  The normal disposition of these items will be at the next scheduled
Planning Commission meeting. 

4. ACTION ITEMS

4.A Init iate Legislat ive Process to Amend the Newport  Zoning Ordinance Related
to Food Cart .

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS

5.A File 4-CUP-21: Condit ional Use Permit  to Allow the Operat ion of  a Historical
Themed Photography Booth Studio in a W-2/"Water-Related" Zone.
File 4-CUP-21 Staff Report.pdf
Attachment A.pdf
Attachment B.pdf
Attachment C.pdf
Attachment D.pdf
Attachment E.pdf
Attachment F.pdf
Attachment G.pdf
Attachment H.pdf
Attachment I.pdf
Attachment J.pdf
Attachment K.pdf
File 4-CUP-21 Draft Final Order.pdf
File 4-CUP-21 Draft Findings.pdf

5.B (Continuat ion) File 1-NB-21 / 2-CUP-21: Design Review and Condit ional Use
Permit  For a 25 Guest Room Hotel With Off ice, Dining and Lobby Space
Ident if ied as The Whaler at  Nye Beach.
Staff Memo.pdf
Michael Abbott Email 5.17.21.pdf
Updated Whaler at Nye Beach Plan Set 5.17.21.pdf
File # 1-NB-21 -- 2-CUP-21 Final Order.pdf

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/920949/Draft_PC_Reg_Session_Minutes_05-10-2021.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935010/File_4-CUP-21_Staff_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935011/Attachment_A.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935016/Attachment_B.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935017/Attachment_C.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935018/Attachment_D.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935019/Attachment_E.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935020/Attachment_F.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935021/Attachment_G.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935023/Attachment_H.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935024/Attachment_I.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935025/Attachment_J.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935026/Attachment_K.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935027/File_4-CUP-21_Draft_Final_Order.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935028/File_4-CUP-21_Draft_Findings.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935031/Staff_Memo.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935032/Michael_Abbott_Email_5.17.21.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935036/Updated_Whaler_at_Nye_Beach_Plan_Set_5.17.21.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935037/File___1-NB-21_--_2-CUP-21_Final_Order.pdf


File # 1-NB-21 -- 2-CUP-21 Findings.pdf

6. DIRECTOR COMMENTS

7. ADJOURNMENT

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/935038/File___1-NB-21_--_2-CUP-21_Findings.pdf


Page 1    Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 5/10/2021. 
 

Draft MINUTES 

City of Newport Planning Commission 

Regular Session 

Newport City Hall Council Chambers by Video Conference 

May 10, 2021 
 

Planning Commissioners Present by Video Conference: Jim Patrick, Bob Berman, Jim Hanselman, Lee 

Hardy, and Bill Branigan. 

 

Planning Commissioners Absent: Braulio Escobar (excused), and Gary East. 

 

City Staff Present by Video Conference: Community Development Director (CDD), Derrick Tokos; and 

Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau. 

   

1. Call to Order & Roll Call.  Chair Patrick called the meeting to order in the City Hall Council 

Chambers at 7:02 p.m. On roll call, Commissioners Hanselman, Branigan, Berman, Hardy, and Patrick 

were present. 

 

2. Approval of Minutes.   

 

A. Approval of the Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes of April 26, 2021. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Berman, seconded by Commissioner Hanselman to approve the 

Planning Commission Regular Session Meeting Minutes of April 26, 2021 as written. The motion carried 

unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

3. Citizen/Public Comment.  None were heard. 

 

4. Action Items.  

 

Commissioner Hardy reported that she had reviewed the materials for both action items in order to give her 

vote.  

 

A. File 1-NCU-21: Final Order and Findings.   

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Branigan, seconded by Commissioner Berman to approve the Final 

Order and Findings for File 1-NCU-21 with conditions. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

B. File 2-NCU-21: Final Order and Findings.   

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Branigan, seconded by Commissioner Berman to approve the Final 

Order and Findings for File 2-NCU-21 with conditions. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

5. Public Hearings.  None were heard.  

 

6. New Business. None were heard.  

 

7. Unfinished Business.  

 

A. Updated Planning Commission Work Program.   

 
Tokos pointed out the change on the work program that picked up the second joint City Council and 

Planning Commission meeting on May 17th concerning the Transportation System Plan (TSP). There 

4



Page 2    Draft Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 5/10/2021. 
 

were five Commissioners who said they could attend which gave them a quorum. Tokos reported he 

would have the rest of the summer meeting dates added to the work program at the next meeting. Patrick 

requested the joint meeting documents be given to the Commission ahead of the meeting. 

 
8. Director Comments.  

 

A. Yaquina Head Traffic Study Public Involvement Plan Draft (Informational).   

 

Tokos noted that the study was informational and to help the Commission be aware it was a smaller 

companion study that would follow the TSP. It would be focused on the Yaquina Head Natural Area and 

would have a heavy bike/pedestrian focus in terms of Lighthouse Drive. This would open up the Federal 

Lands Access dollars. It was rare to access these funds because BLM was the only land Newport had that 

was relevant. This program could provide quite a bit of money for a project. If the lighthouse to lighthouse 

connection with the multiuse path on the west side of Highway 101 became a priority, these funds could 

help pay for the north end of this as it tied into the natural area. 

 

Berman noted the makeup of the oversight committee wasn’t indicated on the draft. Tokos explained the 

oversight committee was a technical committee. He would be the person in the group from the City of 

Newport. James Feldman with the Department of Transportation served in a similar capacity in the group. 

Tokos reported that a lot of the people in the group would be BLM and other Federal Highways individuals.  

 

Berman thought the section in the draft on public meetings and outreach was weak for the minority 

communities. He thought this should be brought up to the committee. Tokos reported he said something 

about this and he would be looking for this to be included in the revised draft.  

 

Tokos reported the August meeting would be pushed out to sometime in the fall. Berman asked that the 

Commission be informed when the meetings would happen.  

 

9. Adjournment. Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m. 

  

Respectfully submitted,   

 

 

     

Sherri Marineau 

Executive Assistant  

5



6



7



8



9



10

d.tokos
Rectangle

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "A"File #4-CUP-21



11



12

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "B"File #4-CUP-21



13

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "C"File #4-CUP-21



14

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "D"File #4-CUP-21



15

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "E"File #4-CUP-21



16

d.tokos
Rectangle

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "F"File #4-CUP-21



17

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "G"File #4-CUP-21



18

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "H"File #4-CUP-21



19

d.tokos
Rectangle

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "I"File #4-CUP-21



20

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "J"File #4-CUP-21



21

d.tokos
Typewritten Text
Attachment "K"File #4-CUP-21



22



23



24



25



26



Page 1  FINAL ORDER:  #4-CUP-21 ~ Steve Palmer. 

 
 
 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION  

OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT, 

COUNTY OF LINCOLN, STATE OF OREGON 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING COMMISSION   ) 

FILE #4-CUP-21, A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT   ) FINAL 

APPLICATION FOR STEVE PALMER (JASON S ASCH  ) ORDER 

SEPARATE PROPERTY TRUST, OWNER)   ) 
 

 

ORDER APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, per Newport Municipal Code Sections 

14.03.080(18) and 14.03.080(19)/“Water-dependent and Water-related Uses,” to allow the operation 

of a historical themed photography booth studio in Suite “H” of the Gear Shed Shops at 342 SW Bay 

Blvd.  It is identified as Lots 3 and 4, Block 5, Plan of Newport (Assessor’s Map 11-11-08-DB, Tax 

Lots 00500).  The property is approximately 7,405.2 sq. ft. in size per Lincoln County Tax Assessor 

records. 

 

WHEREAS: 

 

1.) The Planning Commission has duly accepted the application filed consistent with the Newport 

Municipal Code; and  

 

2.) The Planning Commission duly held a public hearing on the request, with such hearing 

occurring on May 24, 2021; and 

 

3.) At the public hearing on said application, the Planning Commission received testimony and 

evidence; and  

 

4.) At the conclusion of said public hearing, after consideration and discussion, upon a motion 

duly seconded, the Planning Commission APPROVED the request. 

 

THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED by the City of Newport Planning Commission that the 

attached findings of fact and conclusions (Exhibit "A") support the approval of the requested 

conditional use permit with the following condition(s): 

 

1. Approval of this land use permit is based on the submitted written narrative and plans listed as 

Attachments to the staff report.  No use shall occur under this permit other than that which is 

specified within these documents. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant/property owner 

to comply with these documents and the limitations of approval described herein. 

 

BASED UPON THE ABOVE, the Planning Commission determines that this request for a 

Conditional Use Permit is in conformance with the provisions of the Comprehensive Plan and the 

Zoning Ordinance of the City of Newport, and the request is therefore granted. 

 

 

27



Page 2  FINAL ORDER:  #4-CUP-21 ~ Steve Palmer. 

Accepted and approved this 24th day of May, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________

        James Patrick, Chair 

Newport Planning Commission 

Attest: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP 

Community Development Director 

28



EXHIBIT "A" Findings for Final Order for Conditional Use Permit # 4-CUP-21 – Steve Palmer. 1 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

Case File No. 4-CUP-21 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1.  Steve Palmer (applicant) and Jason S Asch Separate Property Trust, Jason S Asch Trustee 
(owner), applied on April 19, 2021, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation 
of a historical themed photography booth studio in Suite “H” of the Gear Shed Shops at 342 SW 
Bay Blvd. 
 
2.  The subject property is identified as Lots 3 and 4, Block 5, Plan of Newport (Assessor’s Map 
11-11-08-DB, Tax Lots 00500).  The property is approximately 7,405.2 sq. ft. in size per Lincoln 
County Tax Assessor records. 
 
3.  Staff reports the following facts in connection with the application: 
 

a. Plan Designation:  Yaquina Bay Shoreland. 
 

b. Zone Designation:  W-2/“Water-Related.” 
 

c. Surrounding Land Uses:  Tourist-oriented retail. 
 

d. Topography and Vegetation:  The developed portion of the property, facing Bay 
Blvd is flat.  The rear of the property slopes up steeply to a parking lot. 

 
e. Existing Structures:  The existing building is a 6,664 sq. ft. former fishing gear shed 

that began to transition to multi-tenant retail in the mid-1990’s. 
 
f. Utilities:  All are available to the site. 
 
g. Development Constraints:  Tsunami Hazard Overlay. 
 
h. Past Land Use Actions:  File No. 4-CUP-96 – Authorized use of a 324 square foot 

(5%) portion of an existing fishing gear shed as a gift shop.  Approved 4/26/96.  
File No. 8-CUP-98.  Permitted conversion of the balance of the building to retail 
use.  Approved 10/26/98. 

 
4.  Upon acceptance of the application, the Community Development (Planning) Department 
mailed notice of the proposed action on May 24, 2021, to affected property owners required to 
receive such notice by the Newport Municipal Code, and to various city departments, agencies, 
and public utilities.  The notice referenced the criteria by which the application was to be assessed.  
The notice required that written comments on the application be submitted by 12:00 noon on the 
date of the hearing, or be submitted in person at the hearing.  The notice was also published in the 
Newport News-Times on May 14, 2021.  No comments were received in response to the notice. 
 
5.  A public hearing was held on May 24, 2021.  At the hearing, the Planning Commission received 
the staff report, provided the applicant an opportunity to make a presentation and opened the floor 
to testimony in favor or opposition to the request.  The minutes of the May 24, 2021 hearing are 
hereby incorporated by reference.  The Planning Staff Report with Attachments is hereby 

29



EXHIBIT "A" Findings for Final Order for Conditional Use Permit # 4-CUP-21 – Steve Palmer. 2 

incorporated by reference into the findings.  The Planning Staff Report Attachments included the 
following: 
 

Attachment "A" – Application Form  
Attachment "B" – Lincoln County Assessor Property Report 
Attachment “C” – Lincoln County Assessor Map 
Attachment "D" – Business Plan for Sunbreak Studios 
Attachment "E" – Applicant’s Signage Plan 
Attachment "F" – Aerial Image Showing Applicant’s Lease Space 
Attachment "G" – Exterior Elevation of Building (File No. 8-CUP-98) 
Attachment "H" – Interior Floor Plan of Building (File No. 8-CUP-98) 
Attachment "I" – Zoning and Utility Map 
Attachment "J" – Uses in the W-2 Zoning District 
Attachment "K" – Public Hearing Notice 
 

6.  Explanation of the Request:  The applicant is requesting the conditional use permit to operate 
an historic costume-based photography studio geared towards tourists.  It will include costumes 
for 1920’s Flapper/Gangsters, 1920’s style swimwear, vintage fisherman/women’s apparel, and 
1960’s hippie themes.  The applicant notes that themes will include hats, costumes, props and 
backdrops, and that the studio will include a small gift shop. 
 
Photographic studios are listed as a personal service retail use, which is not a permitted use in the 
C-2 zone district (NMC 14.03.060(C)(2)(b)(iii)).  However, studios in a generic sense are listed as 
a type of entertainment-oriented retail use that is permitted outright in the C-2 zone district (NMC 
14.03.060(C)(2)(b)(iv)), meaning such a use can be permitted in the W-2 zone district if approved 
as part of a conditional use permit (NMC 14.03.080(18)). 
 
The Planning Commission is charged with interpreting the zoning ordinance in circumstances that 
require factual, policy or legal discretion (NMC 14.52.030(B)(9)).  In this case the discretion is 
whether or not this business model fits as an entertainment-oriented retail use as opposed to a 
personal service use.  Given the themed nature of this particular photographic studio, it would be 
reasonable for the Commission to find that it is more entertainment oriented, and would 
complement the blend of uses in a tourist destination such as the Bayfront. 
 
7.  Conditional Use Permit Required:  Pursuant to Chapter 14.03.080(18)/“Water-dependent and 
Water-related Uses” of the Newport Municipal Code (NMC), a retail use that is permitted outright 
in a C-2/“Tourist Commercial” zoning district requires a conditional use permit to be in a W-
2/“Water-Related” zoning district. 
 
NMC 14.52.030(B)(9) indicates that a Type III decision–making procedure, with review and 
approval by the Planning Commission, is required for interpretations of the Zoning Ordinance that 
involve factual, policy or legal discretion.  The Zoning Ordinance allows entertainment-oriented 
studios as an outright permitted use in the C-2 zone; however, photographic studios are also 
identified as a type of personal service use that is not permitted in the C-2 district.  Policy discretion 
is required to establish which use classification is the best fit for the proposed business; therefore, 
Planning Commission review is required. 

30



EXHIBIT "A" Findings for Final Order for Conditional Use Permit # 4-CUP-21 – Steve Palmer. 3 

 
8.  Applicable Criteria:  The applicable criteria for the conditional use request are found in NMC 
Section 14.34.050: 
 

a.  The public facilities can adequately accommodate the proposed use. 
 
b.  The request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone or overlay zone. 
 
c.  The proposed use does not have an adverse impact greater than existing uses on nearby 

properties; or impacts can be ameliorated through imposition of conditions of approval. 
 
d.  A proposed building or building modification is consistent with the overall development 

character of the neighborhood with regard to building size and height, considering both 
existing buildings and potential buildings allowable as uses permitted outright. 

 
CONCLUSIONS 

 
Regarding the applicable criteria for the conditional use request, the following conclusions can be 
made: 
 
A.  Criterion #1.  The public facilities can adequately accommodate the proposed use. 
 

1.  Public facilities are defined in the Zoning Ordinance as sanitary sewer, water, streets and 
electricity.  All public facilities are available and presently serve the property.  As noted on the 
aerial image included with the application (Attachment “F”), the applicant will be occupying an 
existing tenant space. 
 
2.  Considering the above, the Planning Commission concludes that the public facilities can 
adequately accommodate the remodel and expansion with the conditions noted. 

 
B.  Criterion #2.  The request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone or overlay zone. 
 

1.  This criterion addresses special requirements of the underlying or overlay zone beyond the 
standard zoning ordinance requirements.  Each zoning district includes “intent” language.  For 
the W-2 district, it includes “All conditional uses in a W-2 district shall also comply with the 
following standard:  In areas considered to be historic, unique, or scenic, the proposed use shall 
be designed to maintain or enhance the historic, unique, or scenic quality.” (NMC 14.03.040) 
 
2.  The Bayfront has historically included a blend of tourist-oriented retail, restaurants, and 
entertainment venues.  Ripley’s Believe It or Not is located a short distance to the east and the sea 
lion dock is across the street.   
 
3.  Given the above, the Planning Commissions concludes that this character themed 
photographic studio will maintain the historic and unique quality of the area. 

 
C.  Criterion #3.  The proposed use does not have an adverse impact greater than existing uses on 
nearby properties; or impacts can be ameliorated through imposition of conditions of approval.  

31



EXHIBIT "A" Findings for Final Order for Conditional Use Permit # 4-CUP-21 – Steve Palmer. 4 

 
1.  As depicted on the aerial image included with the application (Attachment “F”) and interior 
floor plan (Attachment “H”), the photographic studio will be located within the interior of the 
building in an existing tenant space where it would have little, if any, impact on nearby 
properties 
 
2.  Given the above, the Planning Commission concludes that the proposed use does not have 
an adverse impact greater than existing uses on nearby properties. 

 
D.  Criterion #4.  A proposed building or building modification is consistent with the overall 
development character of the neighborhood with regard to building size and height, considering 
both existing buildings and potential buildings allowable as uses permitted outright. 
 

1.  The only exterior modifications attributed to this proposal is the signage, which will consist of 
fascia signage and a hanging sign under the awning and a sandwich board sign (Attachment “E”).  
This is consistent with the theme that was approved with the 1998 conditional use permit approval 
(ref: hanging sign illustration, Attachment “G”). 
 
2.  Given the above, the Planning Commission concludes that the use will be consistent with the 
overall development character of the neighborhood regarding building size and height. 

 
OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 
Based on the application material, the Planning Staff Report, and other evidence and testimony 

in the record, the Planning Commission concludes that the above findings of fact and conclusions 
demonstrate compliance with the criteria for a conditional use permit found in Section 14.34.050 
of the Newport Municipal Code (NMC); and, therefore, the requested conditional use permit is 
hereby approved with the imposition of the following conditions of approval: 
 
1. Approval of this land use permit is based on the submitted written narrative and plans listed as 

Attachments to the staff report.  No use shall occur under this permit other than that which is 
specified within these documents. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant/property owner to 
comply with these documents and the limitations of approval described herein. 

32



33



34



35



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A001

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

PROJECT DATA:

GUEST UNITS
PROPOSED GUEST UNITS   25

PARKING
SURFACE PARKING ADA STALLS  3
SUB-BUILDING PARKING STALLS  27
TOTAL PARKING STALLS   30
COMPACT STALLS    12
(40% OF TOTAL)

AREA CALCULATIONS
MAIN FLOOR      9,737 SF
2ND FLOOR      7,428 SF
3RD FLOOR      8,504 SF
TOTAL INTERIOR      25,669 SF
   
PARKING AREA      8,635 SF
PARKING LOBBY      864 SF
MECH/B.O.H.      1,611 SF
TOTAL GARAGE       11,110 SF

OCEANSIDE EXTERIOR VERANDA   3,395 SF

SHEET INDEX

A001  COVERSHEET - PROJECT DATA

C001  TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

A100  ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

A101   1ST FLOOR PLAN
A102  2ND FLOOR PLAN
A103  3RD FLOOR PLAN
A104  ROOF PLAN
A105  PARKING GARAGE PLAN

A201  EXTERIOR 3D VIEWS
A202  EXTERIOR 3D VIEWS
A203  EXTERIOR 3D VIEWS
A204  EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A205  EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

L100  LANDSCAPE PLAN
L200  EXTERIOR LIGHTING
C001  CIVIL DIAGRAMS

NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE - CHAPTER 14 - ZONING

ZONE:     C-2 (TOURIST COMMERCIAL)

OVERLAY:   NYE BEACH DESIGN REIVEW DISTRICT

    ("DESIGN GUIDELINES" USED)

USE:    HOTEL (PERMITTED)

LOT STANDARDS (PER TABLE "A" 14.13.020 NMC- CH-14 - ZONING)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:    5,000 SF  (3,000 SF NYE BEACH OVERLAY)

LOT COVERAGE:    85-90%

MAX BUILDING HEIGHT:  50 FEET

SETBACKS:    FRONT:  0 FEET (5' ALONG W. OLIVE)

     SIDE:     0 FEET

     REAR:    0 FEET

DENSITY PER UNIT:  N/A

PARKING:    1 SPACE PER GUEST UNIT (HOTEL)

     1 SPACE FOR MANAGER (HOTEL)

TOTAL REQUIRED:  26 STALLS

TOTAL SHOWN:   30 STALLS (INCLUDES 3 SURFACE ADA)

COMPACT STALLS:  12  STALLS (40% PER ALLOWABLE)

TRASH LOCATION:  SUB-BUILDING PARKING GARAGE

ZONING ORDINANCE DATA:

TSUNAMI NOTE:

OWNER IS REQUIRED THE INSTALLATION OF TSUNAMI HAZARD WAY-FINDING SIGNAGE IN A FORMAT
AND LOCATION APPROVED BY CITY PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY. FURTHER EMERGENCY EVACUATION
INFORMATION SHALL BE POSTED IN HOTEL COMMON AREAS TO ALERT EMPLOYEES AND GUESTS
TO THE TSUNAMI THREAT.

36



S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

O

H

P

x

O

H

P
x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T
x

U
G

T
x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

O
H

Px

O

H

P

x

O

H

P

x

O

H

P

x

O

H

P

x

O

H

P

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

P

x

U
G

P
x

U
G

P
x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U
G

P
x

U
G

P
x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U
G

P
x

U
G

P
x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

UGPx

UGPx

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

G

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U
G

T
x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

UGPx

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

P

x

U

G

T

x

U
G

T
x

U
G

T
x

U

G

T

x

U

G

T

x

F

O

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

S

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

S

D

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

W

x

SHEET NUMBER

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

U
M

B
E

R
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
F

I
L
E

 
N

A
M

E
S

C
A

L
E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

N
O

.

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

P
L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E

L
A

S
T

 
E

D
I
T

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

D
R

A
W

N

S
H

E
E

T
 
I
N

F
O

S
U

B
M

I
T

T
A

L

R
E

M
A

R
K

S
B

Y

9
7

5
5

 
S

W
 
B

a
r
n

e
s
 
R

d
,
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
3

0
0

P
o

r
t
l
a

n
d

,
 
O

R
 
 
9

7
2

2
5

5
0

3
-
6

2
6

-
0

4
5

5
 
 
 
F

a
x
 
5

0
3

-
5

2
6

-
0

7
7

5

w
w

w
.
w

h
p

a
c
i
f
i
c
.
c
o

m

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

H
A

L
L

M
A

R
K

 
I
N

N
 
&

 
R

E
S

O
R

T

N
W

 
1
/
4
,
 
N

W
 
1
/
4
,
 
S

E
C

 
0
8
,
 
T

.
 
1
1
 
S

.
,
 
R

.
 
1
1
 
W

.
,
 
W

.
M

.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
N

E
W

P
O

R
T

,
 
L
I
N

C
O

L
N

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

C
0
0
0
1
0
6
.
0
1

C
0
0
0
1
0
6
.
0
1
_
V

-
T

S
0
0

1
"
 
=

 
3
0
'

1 OF 1

S
U

R
V

E
Y

E
D

A
R

S

A
R

S

J
R

K
M

B

1
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
1
9

1
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
1
9

Gx

OHPx

SSx

Wx

SDx

UGTx

UGPx

FOx

⁰ ”

 

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

155 SW ELIZABETH STREET

A PORTION OF BARLOWS BLOCK AND BLOOMERS ADDITION,

LOCATED IN THE CITY OF NEWPORT,

COUNTY OF LINCOLN,

STATE OF OREGON

P

R

E

L

I

M

I

N

A

R

Y

37



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A100

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TU

R
A

L 
S

IT
E

P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

SPRK

COS

COS

SPRK
SPRK

P

P

P

P

COS

P PSPRK

SPRK

P

SPRK

P

SPRK

90

91

88 89
89

88
87

86
85

84

88

89

88
89

86
85

84

8283

80

79

787776

75

76

80

80

79

78

78

79

79

80

8182

83

88

87 86
85

84
83

82

81

80

87

86

85

84

83

82
81

80

888990

90

88

89

90

89

88

89

90

90

91

P

S2°41'45"W  107.84'

S2°41'45"W  70.54'

S2°41'45"W  597.51'

S2°41'45"W  31.26'

(N2°43'01"E 462.24' 12564)

S2°41'45"W  462.20'

S2°41'45"W  519.14'

S2°41'45"W  502.93'

N87°13'34"W
  166.68'

S2°41'45"W  566.16'

S60°48'01"W  196.32'

(N60°43'01"E 196.53' 12564)

S60°48'01"W  257.63'

N

NYE BEACH VILLAGE
VIEWS

YA
Q
UIN

A 
HE

AD

LI
G
HT

HO
US

E

& 
O
CE

AN
 V

IE
WS

OCEAN VIEW

EXISTING
PROPOSED

50
'-0

"

5'
5'

18
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

36
'-0

"

24'-0" 35'-0"

EXISTING POOL
BUILDING

ELIZABETH STREET

W
EST O

LIV
E STR

EET

SW DOLPHIN STREET

VERAND
A

ENTRY
D
RIVE

PARKING BELOW
(27 STALLS)

VERANDA

WALKWAY

PO
RT

E

CO
CH

ER
E

B.O.H
OFFICE

LIVING
 RO

O
M

HO
TEL

LO
BBY

CH
EC

K-
IN

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

PATIO

EXISTING HOTEL
BUILDING W

A
L
K
W

A
Y
 T

O
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

NEW SIDEWALK
N
EW

 SID
EW

A
LK

ELEV

KITCHEN

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

GUEST CORRIDOR

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ELIZABETH STREET

STAIR

ST
AI
R

FLOOR ABV

FLO
O
R ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

LARG
E SLID

E D
O
O
R

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

BE
AM

 A
BV

BE
AM

 A
BV

R10.0'

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(74 STALLS)

4
A205

1
A204

2
A204

3
A204

NEW SIDEWALK

NEW SIDEWALK

SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

R10.0'
R6.0' R10.0'

N
EW

C
R
O
SSW

A
LK

DRIVEWAY TO CURB

R
.O

.W
.

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

BA
R/

FO
O
D

SE
RV

IC
E

STAIR
D
O
WN

STAIR
D
O
WN

SCALE: 1"   = 20'

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS TYPICAL AT
HOTEL VERANDA,
INTERNAL WALKWAYS
AND PORTE COCHERE
'BLOCK PATTERN'

38



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A101

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

1S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

50
'-0

"

5'
18

'-0
"

36
'-0

"
24'-0" 35'-0"

W
EST O

LIV
E STR

EET

VERAND
A

ENTRY
D
RIVE

PARKING BELOW
(27 STALLS)

VERANDA

WALKWAY

PO
RT

E

CO
CH

ER
E

B.O.H
OFFICE

LIVING
 RO

O
M

HO
TEL

LO
BBY

CH
EC

K-
IN

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

PATIO

W
A
L
K
W

A
Y
 T

O
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

NEW SIDEWALK

N
EW

 SID
EW

A
LK

ELEV

KITCHEN

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

GUEST CORRIDOR

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ELIZABETH STREET

STAIR

ST
AI
R

FLOOR ABV

FLO
O
R ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

LARG
E SLID

E D
O
O
R

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

BE
AM

 A
BV

BE
AM

 A
BV

R10.0'

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(74 STALLS)

4
A205

1
A204

2
A204

3
A204

NEW SIDEWALK

SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

R10.0'
R6.0' R10.0'

N
EW

C
R
O
SSW

A
LK

DRIVEWAY TO CURB

R
.O

.W
.

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

BA
R/

FO
O
D

SE
RV

IC
E

STAIR
D
O
WN

STAIR
D
O
WN

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

1ST FLOOR PLAN

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS TYPICAL AT
HOTEL VERANDA,
INTERNAL WALKWAYS
AND PORTE COCHERE
'BLOCK PATTERN'

N

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

PAVER DETAIL @ CROSSWALKS

39



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A101

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

1S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

50
'-0

"

5'
18

'-0
"

36
'-0

"
24'-0" 35'-0"

W
EST O

LIV
E STR

EET

VERAND
A

ENTRY
D
RIVE

PARKING BELOW
(27 STALLS)

VERANDA

WALKWAY

PO
RT

E

CO
CH

ER
E

B.O.H
OFFICE

LIVING
 RO

O
M

HO
TEL

LO
BBY

CH
EC

K-
IN

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

PATIO

W
A
L
K
W

A
Y
 T

O
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

NEW SIDEWALK

N
EW

 SID
EW

A
LK

ELEV

KITCHEN

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

GUEST CORRIDOR

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ELIZABETH STREET

STAIR

ST
AI
R

FLOOR ABV

FLO
O
R ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

LARG
E SLID

E D
O
O
R

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

BE
AM

 A
BV

BE
AM

 A
BV

R10.0'

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(74 STALLS)

4
A205

1
A204

2
A204

3
A204

NEW SIDEWALK

SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

R10.0'
R6.0' R10.0'

N
EW

C
R
O
SSW

A
LK

DRIVEWAY TO CURB

R
.O

.W
.

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

BA
R/

FO
O
D

SE
RV

IC
E

STAIR
D
O
WN

STAIR
D
O
WN

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

1ST FLOOR PLAN

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS TYPICAL AT
HOTEL VERANDA,
INTERNAL WALKWAYS
AND PORTE COCHERE
'BLOCK PATTERN'

N

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

PAVER DETAIL @ CROSSWALKS

W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A102

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

2N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

ELEV

GUEST CORRIDOR

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ROOF
BELOW

RO
O
F

BELO
W

LO
BBY

BRID
G
E

LIBRARY
LO

FT

O
PEN TO

BELO
W

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

ROOF
BELOW

O
PEN TO

BELO
W

STAIR

ST
AI
R

DECK
DECK

DECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
EC

K

D
EC

K
LIN

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

2ND FLOOR PARTITION PLAN
N

40



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A101

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

1S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

50
'-0

"

5'
18

'-0
"

36
'-0

"
24'-0" 35'-0"

W
EST O

LIV
E STR

EET

VERAND
A

ENTRY
D
RIVE

PARKING BELOW
(27 STALLS)

VERANDA

WALKWAY

PO
RT

E

CO
CH

ER
E

B.O.H
OFFICE

LIVING
 RO

O
M

HO
TEL

LO
BBY

CH
EC

K-
IN

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

PATIO

W
A
L
K
W

A
Y
 T

O
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

NEW SIDEWALK

N
EW

 SID
EW

A
LK

ELEV

KITCHEN

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

GUEST CORRIDOR

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ELIZABETH STREET

STAIR

ST
AI
R

FLOOR ABV

FLO
O
R ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

LARG
E SLID

E D
O
O
R

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

BE
AM

 A
BV

BE
AM

 A
BV

R10.0'

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(74 STALLS)

4
A205

1
A204

2
A204

3
A204

NEW SIDEWALK

SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

R10.0'
R6.0' R10.0'

N
EW

C
R
O
SSW

A
LK

DRIVEWAY TO CURB

R
.O

.W
.

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

BA
R/

FO
O
D

SE
RV

IC
E

STAIR
D
O
WN

STAIR
D
O
WN

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

1ST FLOOR PLAN

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS TYPICAL AT
HOTEL VERANDA,
INTERNAL WALKWAYS
AND PORTE COCHERE
'BLOCK PATTERN'

N

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

PAVER DETAIL @ CROSSWALKS

W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A103

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

3R
D

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

ELEV

GUEST CORRIDOR

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

STAIR

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ROOF
BELOW

RO
O
F

BELO
W

ROOF
BELOW

1 BED
RO

O
M

SUITE

O
PEN TO

BELO
W

O
PEN TO

BELO
W

ST
AI
R

LIN

DECK DECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
ECK

D
EC

K

D
EC

K

1 BED
RO

O
M

SUITE

DECK

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

3RD FLOOR PARTITION PLAN
N

41



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A101

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

1S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

50
'-0

"

5'
18

'-0
"

36
'-0

"
24'-0" 35'-0"

W
EST O

LIV
E STR

EET

VERAND
A

ENTRY
D
RIVE

PARKING BELOW
(27 STALLS)

VERANDA

WALKWAY

PO
RT

E

CO
CH

ER
E

B.O.H
OFFICE

LIVING
 RO

O
M

HO
TEL

LO
BBY

CH
EC

K-
IN

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

PATIO

W
A
L
K
W

A
Y
 T

O
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

NEW SIDEWALK

N
EW

 SID
EW

A
LK

ELEV

KITCHEN

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

GUEST CORRIDOR

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ELIZABETH STREET

STAIR

ST
AI
R

FLOOR ABV

FLO
O
R ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

LARG
E SLID

E D
O
O
R

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

BE
AM

 A
BV

BE
AM

 A
BV

R10.0'

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(74 STALLS)

4
A205

1
A204

2
A204

3
A204

NEW SIDEWALK

SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

R10.0'
R6.0' R10.0'

N
EW

C
R
O
SSW

A
LK

DRIVEWAY TO CURB

R
.O

.W
.

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

BA
R/

FO
O
D

SE
RV

IC
E

STAIR
D
O
WN

STAIR
D
O
WN

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

1ST FLOOR PLAN

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS TYPICAL AT
HOTEL VERANDA,
INTERNAL WALKWAYS
AND PORTE COCHERE
'BLOCK PATTERN'

N

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

PAVER DETAIL @ CROSSWALKS

W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A104

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: R

O
O

F 
P

LA
N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

6:126:12

6:12

6:12

6:
12

6:12

6:12

LOW
ROOF

LOW
ROOF

LO
W

RO
O
F

EL
EV

AT
O
R

CH
IM

NE
Y

6:
12

3:
12

3:
12

3:
12

3:
12

3:
12

3:12

3:12

6:12

6:
12

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

ROOF PLAN
N

42



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A101

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

1S
T 

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

50
'-0

"

5'
18

'-0
"

36
'-0

"
24'-0" 35'-0"

W
EST O

LIV
E STR

EET

VERAND
A

ENTRY
D
RIVE

PARKING BELOW
(27 STALLS)

VERANDA

WALKWAY

PO
RT

E

CO
CH

ER
E

B.O.H
OFFICE

LIVING
 RO

O
M

HO
TEL

LO
BBY

CH
EC

K-
IN

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

PATIO

W
A
L
K
W

A
Y
 T

O
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

NEW SIDEWALK

N
EW

 SID
EW

A
LK

ELEV

KITCHEN

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

GUEST CORRIDOR

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ELIZABETH STREET

STAIR

ST
AI
R

FLOOR ABV

FLO
O
R ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

LARG
E SLID

E D
O
O
R

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

BE
AM

 A
BV

BE
AM

 A
BV

R10.0'

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(74 STALLS)

4
A205

1
A204

2
A204

3
A204

NEW SIDEWALK

SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

R10.0'
R6.0' R10.0'

N
EW

C
R
O
SSW

A
LK

DRIVEWAY TO CURB

R
.O

.W
.

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

BA
R/

FO
O
D

SE
RV

IC
E

STAIR
D
O
WN

STAIR
D
O
WN

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

1ST FLOOR PLAN

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS AT CROSSWALK
TO MATCH NYE BEACH
STANDARD PATTERN
'BRICK HERRINGBONE'

STAMPED CONCRETE
PAVERS TYPICAL AT
HOTEL VERANDA,
INTERNAL WALKWAYS
AND PORTE COCHERE
'BLOCK PATTERN'

N

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

PAVER DETAIL @ CROSSWALKS

W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A105

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

PA
R

K
IN

G
 G

A
R

A
G

E
P

LA
N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

ELEV

MECHANICAL/ELECTRICAL
STORAGE (BOH)

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

PARKING GARAGE
27 STALLS

G1
LOBBY

STAIR

ST
AI
R RI

SE
R

RO
O
M

TR
AS

H

RO
O
M

SCALE: 1"   = 10'

PARKING GARAGE PLAN
N

43



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A201

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

3D
 M

O
D

E
L 

V
IE

W
S

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

VIEW FROM OCEANSIDE

VIEW FROM OCEANSIDE

BIRD'S EYE VIEW OF OCEANSIDE

44



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A202

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

3D
 M

O
D

E
L 

V
IE

W
S

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

VIEW FROM ENTRY

BIRD'S EYE VIEW OF ENTRY SIDE MODEL PLAN VIEW

45



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A203

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

3D
 M

O
D

E
L 

V
IE

W
S

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

VIEW FROM OCEANSIDE

COLOR RENDERING VIEW FROM OCEANSIDE

46



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A204

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

X
TE

R
IO

R
E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

10
'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
2
0

'-
0

"

4
0

'-
0

"

R-1

S-1

S-2

C-1
C-1

S-2

R-1

S-1

UPPER ROOF MAX HT.

THIRD FLOOR LEVEL

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL

GARAGE FLOOR LEVEL

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL

10
'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
2
0

'-
0

"

4
0

'-
0

"

R-1

S-1

S-2

C-1

C-1

WD-1

WD-1

UPPER ROOF MAX HT.

THIRD FLOOR LEVEL

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL

GARAGE FLOOR LEVEL

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

1 WEST ELEVATION - OCEANSIDE

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

2 NORTH ELEVATION - DOLPHIN STREET

R-1 : COMP ROOFING - COLOR: BLACK OAK
WD-1 : TIMBER POSTS & BEAMS

S-1 - SHAKE SIDING - CHARCOAL STAIN S-2 - PLANK SIDING - CLEAR STAIN

C-1 - BOARD FORMED SITE WALL - COLOR: STONE

47



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

A205

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y: E

X
TE

R
IO

R
E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

10
'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
2
0

'-
0

"

4
0

'-
0

"

R-1

S-1

S-2

WD-1WD-1

S-1

S-1

C-1

S-2

R-1

WD-1

UPPER ROOF MAX HT.

THIRD FLOOR LEVEL

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL

GARAGE FLOOR LEVEL

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL

10
'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
10

'-
0

"
2
0

'-
0

"

4
0

'-
0

"

R-1

C-1

S-2

S-1

S-2

WD-1

WD-1

UPPER ROOF MAX HT.

THIRD FLOOR LEVEL

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL

GARAGE FLOOR LEVEL

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

3 EAST ELEVATION - ENTRY SIDE

SCALE: 1/8"   =    1'-0"

4 SOUTH ELEVATION - WALKWAY TO BEACH

R-1 : COMP ROOFING - COLOR: BLACK OAK
WD-1 : TIMBER POSTS & BEAMS

S-1 - SHAKE SIDING - CHARCOAL STAIN S-2 - PLANK SIDING - CLEAR STAIN

C-1 - BOARD FORMED SITE WALL - COLOR: STONE

48



W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

L100

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

49



50
'-0

"

5'
18

'-0
"

36
'-0

"

24'-0" 35'-0"

W
EST O

LIV
E STR

EET

VERAND
A

ENTRY
D
RIVE

PARKING BELOW
(27 STALLS)

VERANDA

WALKWAY

PO
RT

E

CO
CH

ER
E

B.O.H
OFFICE

LIVING
 RO

O
M

HO
TEL

LO
BBY

CH
EC

K-
IN

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
GUEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

NEW
G
UEST

RM

PATIO

W
A
L
K
W

A
Y
 T

O
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

NEW SIDEWALK

N
EW

 SID
EW

A
LK

ELEV

KITCHEN

FI
RE

PL
AC

E

GUEST CORRIDOR

G
UEST CO

RRID
O
R

ELIZABETH STREET

STAIR

ST
AI
R

FLOOR ABV

FLO
O
R ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

D
ECK ABV

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

LARG
E SLID

E D
O
O
R

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UT

LI
NE

 O
F

FL
O
O
R 

AB
O
VE

O
UTLINE O

F

FLO
O
R ABO

VE

BE
AM

 A
BV

BE
AM

 A
BV

R10.0'

EXISTING PARKING LOT
(74 STALLS)

4
A205

1
A204

2
A204

3
A204

NEW SIDEWALK

SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

R10.0'
R6.0' R10.0'

N
EW

C
R
O
SSW

A
LK

DRIVEWAY TO CURB

R
.O

.W
.

N
E
W

C
R

O
S
S
W

A
L
K

BA
R/

FO
O
D

SE
RV

IC
E

STAIR
D
O
WN

STAIR
D
O
WN

1ST FLOOR PLAN

W
H

AL
ER

   A
T

  N
YE

 B
EA

C
H

©

L200

N
ew

po
rt

   
• 

  O
re

go
n 

  •
   

U
SA

18
03

LA
Y

O
U

T 
N

A
M

E
:

D
R

AW
N

 B
Y:

LI
G

H
TI

N
G

 P
LA

N
 -

S
C

H
E

D
U

LE

D
AT

E
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T:5/

17
/2

02
1

M
A

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

- 4
 / 

5 
/ 2

02
1

LU
D

R
-S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L 

-5
 / 

17
 / 

20
21

PRODUCT DETAILS:

Suitable for use in wet (interior direct splash and outdoor direct rain or
sprinkler) locations as defined by NEC and CEC. Meets United States
UL Underwriters Laboratories & CSA Canadian Standards Association
Product Safety Standards
A wiring kit is supplied.
Warm rich light bronze tone
Please refer to Hinkley's Warranty for complete product warranty details;
some warranty limitations may apply.

75W SM. SPOT LIGHT
54000BZ
120V SPOT LIGHT SMALL
A wiring kit is supplied.
 

DETAILS

FINISH: Bronze

MATERIAL: Die-Cast Aluminum

GLASS: Convex Clear Tempered,
Soda-Lime Glass Lens

DIMENSIONS

WIDTH: 3.8"

HEIGHT: 6.6"

DEPTH: 8.4"

WEIGHT: 2 lbs.

TOP TO OUTLET: 0"

LIGHT SOURCE

LIGHT SOURCE: Socket

WATTAGE: 1-75w Med.

VOLTAGE: 120v

MOUNTING

LEAD WIRE: 1 X 6"

SHIPPING

CARTON LENGTH: 8.5"

CARTON WIDTH: 5"

CARTON HEIGHT: 4.5"

CARTON WEIGHT: 2 lbs.

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

HINKLEY
33000 Pin Oak Parkway
Avon Lake, OH 44012

PHONE: (440) 653-5500
Toll Free: 1 (800) 446-5539

hinkley.com

PRODUCT DETAILS:

Suitable for use in wet (interior direct splash and outdoor direct rain or
sprinkler) locations as defined by NEC and CEC. Meets United States
UL Underwriters Laboratories & CSA Canadian Standards Association
Product Safety Standards
Rated for both indoor and outdoor use
Fixture is ADA compliant and adheres to the standards and guidelines
listed by the Americans with Disabilities Act.
Photometrics are based off engine photometrics at various mounting
heights.
Fits a standard gang junction box
LED integrated components carry a 10-year limited warranty
Warm rich light bronze tone
Please refer to Hinkley's Warranty for complete product warranty details;
some warranty limitations may apply.

LUNA LED STEP 120V
58508BZ
LUNA STEP LIGHT 120V HORIZONTAL
The Luna step light is the perfect addition to any
interior or exterior lighting plan and complements the
Hinkley Luna outdoor lantern collection. A
contemporary styled radius front die cast faceplate is
included. The Luna step light is compatible with any
decorator style faceplate and is easily retrofitted to
any gang/receptacle location.
 

DETAILS

FINISH: Bronze

MATERIAL: Zinc-Aluminum Alloy

DIMENSIONS

WIDTH: 4.5"

HEIGHT: 3"

DEPTH: 2"

WEIGHT: 0.7 lbs.

EXTENSION: 0.5"

TOP TO OUTLET: 0"

LIGHT SOURCE

LIGHT SOURCE: Integrated LED

LED NAME: LS-20

WATTAGE: 4w LED *Included

VOLTAGE: 120v

COLOR TEMP: 2700

LUMENS: 240

CRI: 90

INCANDESCENT
EQUIVALENCY:

1 x 20w

DIMMABLE: Yes - CL Type Dimmer
(SSL7A)

SHIPPING

CARTON LENGTH: 3.3"

CARTON WIDTH: 3.3"

CARTON HEIGHT: 2"

CARTON WEIGHT: 1 lbs.

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

HINKLEY
33000 Pin Oak Parkway
Avon Lake, OH 44012

PHONE: (440) 653-5500
Toll Free: 1 (800) 446-5539

hinkley.com

PRODUCT DETAILS:

Suitable for use in wet (interior direct splash and outdoor direct rain or
sprinkler) locations as defined by NEC and CEC. Meets United States
UL Underwriters Laboratories & CSA Canadian Standards Association
Product Safety Standards
Fixture is Dark Sky compliant and engineered to minimize light glare
upward into the night sky.
Fixture is ADA compliant and adheres to the standards and guidelines
listed by the Americans with Disabilities Act.
LED lamp included is JA8 2016 certified.
2 year finish warranty
LED Lamps carry a 3-year limited warranty
Angular lines, a bold finish and robust details create an industrial edge to
add flair to any type of façade
Bold and robust dark bronze finish

ARIA
2307KZ-LL
MEDIUM WALL MOUNT LANTERN
Aria is a contemporary style that effortlessly
complements the facade of any exterior. Its modern
shape in durable aluminum is enhanced by a
stainless steel mesh shade. Aria’s high style and low
maintenance comes standard Dark Sky compliant.
 

DETAILS

FINISH: Buckeye Bronze

MATERIAL: Aluminum

DIMENSIONS

WIDTH: 7.5"

HEIGHT: 17.3"

WEIGHT: 3.5 lbs.

BACK PLATE: 7.5"W X 4.75"H

EXTENSION: 4"

TOP TO OUTLET: 2.5"

LIGHT SOURCE

LIGHT SOURCE: LED Lamp

LED NAME: GU10LED-6.5

WATTAGE: 1-6.50w GU10 LED
*Included

VOLTAGE: 120v

COLOR TEMP: 2700

LUMENS: 500

CRI: 80

INCANDESCENT
EQUIVALENCY:

1 x 50w

DIMMABLE: Yes - CL Type Dimmer
(SSL7A)

SHIPPING

CARTON LENGTH: 20.5"

CARTON WIDTH: 10"

CARTON HEIGHT: 7.5"

CARTON WEIGHT: 4.3 lbs.

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

HINKLEY
33000 Pin Oak Parkway
Avon Lake, OH 44012

PHONE: (440) 653-5500
Toll Free: 1 (800) 446-5539

hinkley.com

PRODUCT DETAILS:

A wiring kit and ground spike is supplied.
Suitable for use in wet (interior direct splash and outdoor direct rain or
sprinkler) locations as defined by NEC and CEC. Meets United States
UL Underwriters Laboratories & CSA Canadian Standards Association
Product Safety Standards
Hardy Island Series products carry a lifetime limited warranty
LED Lamps carry a 3-year limited warranty
The Hardy Island Collection, named for the ruggedly beautiful island off
the coast of British Columbia, defies the harshest environments in style
with landscape lighting that features fully enclosed lamps and a rich
weathered brass finish that will mature naturally over time.
Rich dark brass finish
Please refer to Hinkley's Warranty for complete product warranty details;
some warranty limitations may apply.

HARDY ISLAND LG.
CLASSIC 24" PATH
LIGHT
16019MZ-LL
HARDY ISLAND LARGE CLASSIC LED PATH
LIGHT
Named after the ruggedly beautiful island off the
coast of British Columbia, Hardy Island products are
impeccably designed to defy the harshest
environments. Hinkley Path Lights add impeccable
style and safety to walkways and outdoor living
environments to create sophisticated curb appeal.
 

DETAILS

FINISH: Matte Bronze

MATERIAL: Cast Brass

GLASS: Clear

DIMENSIONS

WIDTH: 8"

HEIGHT: 24"

DEPTH: 8"

WEIGHT: 4 lbs.

TOP TO OUTLET: 0"

LIGHT SOURCE

LIGHT SOURCE: LED Lamp

LED NAME: 00T3-27LED-1.5

WATTAGE: 1-1.50w T3 LED *Included

VOLTAGE: 12v

COLOR TEMP: 2700

LUMENS: 150

CRI: 90

INCANDESCENT
EQUIVALENCY:

1 x 25w

DIMMABLE: Yes - MLV On Transformer
Primary

MOUNTING

LEAD WIRE: 1 X 36"

SHIPPING

CARTON LENGTH: 24.5"

CARTON WIDTH: 10.5"

CARTON HEIGHT: 5"

CARTON WEIGHT: 4.5 lbs.

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

HINKLEY
33000 Pin Oak Parkway
Avon Lake, OH 44012

PHONE: (440) 653-5500
Toll Free: 1 (800) 446-5539

hinkley.com

L-1

L-2

L-3

TYPE MFR

LED WALL SCONCE

LANDSCAPE SPOT ACCENT

LED RECESSED WALL/STEP LIGHT

HINKLEY

EXTERIOR BUILDING/LANDSCAPE LIGHTING SCHEDULE
MODEL

HINKLEY

ARIA 2307KZ-LL (BUCKEYE BRONZE)

LUNA LED STEP 12V (15508BZ)

MARK SYMBOL

L-1 L-2

HINKLEY SMALL SPOT LIGHT 75W (BRONZE)

L-3

L-4

L-4 LANDSCAPE PATH LIGHT HINKLEY HARDY ISLAND 24" (BRONZE)

L-1 L-1 L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-1

L-2

L-2

L-2L-2 L-2

L-2

L-2

L-2

L-2

L-2

L-2

L-1

L-1

L-2

L-2

L-2

L-2

L-2L-2

L-2L-2

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-4

L-3
L-3

L-3

L-3

L-3

L-3

L-3

L-3

L-3

L-3L-3

L-3

L-3

L-3

L-5 'ACORN' STREET LIGHT CITY SPEC TO MATCH CITY STANDARD - NYE BEACH*

* = ACORN STREET LIGHTS TO BE LOCATED BY CITY ENGINEER

L-5

50



SW   DOLPHIN   STREET

WHALER INN

W

 

 

 

 

O

L

I

V

E

 

 

 

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

CITY OF NEWPORT TYPICAL ROADWAY LAYOUT

(T-052)

1

2

3

4

SHEET NUMBER

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

U
M

B
E

R
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
F

I
L
E

 
N

A
M

E
S

C
A

L
E

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

D
A

T
E

N
O

.

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

P
L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E

L
A

S
T

 
E

D
I
T

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

D
R

A
W

N

S
H

E
E

T
 
I
N

F
O

S
U

B
M

I
T

T
A

L

R
E

M
A

R
K

S
B

Y
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

W
H

A
L
E

R
 
I
N

N

N
E

W
P

O
R

T
,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

2
2
9
2
1
9

X
R

-
S

I
T

E
1
"
=

 
2
0
'

1 of 1

E
D

L

T
J
O

T
J
O

3
/
3
/
2
0
2
0

3
/
4
/
2
0
2
0

TJO

1 of 1

9
7

5
5

 
S

W
 
B

a
r
n

e
s
 
R

d
,
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
3

0
0

P
o

r
t
l
a

n
d

,
 
O

R
 
 
9

7
2

2
5

5
0

3
-
6

2
6

-
0

4
5

5
 
 
 
F

a
x
 
5

0
3

-
5

2
6

-
0

7
7

5

w
w

w
.
w

h
p

a
c
i
f
i
c
.
c
o

m

5

6

7

3

3

1

4

1

5

2

3

7

3

2

6

5

1

PROPOSED C/L

CURB LINE EXTENSION

51

AutoCAD SHX Text
( FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH = 20 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL PARALLEL ADA RAMP INSTALL STANDARD CURB & GUTTER INSTALL CONCRETE SIDEWALK  INSTALL BARRICADE  EXISTING CURB TO REMAIN MATCH EXISTING SIDEWALK EXISTING BUILDING TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UXREF INDEX:

AutoCAD SHX Text
[PATH: P:\Hallmark Inns and Resorts\229219-C000106.01\Execution\Drawings\Xrefs\XR-Site.dwg]  [LAYOUT: Site]

AutoCAD SHX Text
[DATE: 3/4/2020 11:52 AM]  [AUTHOR: tott]  [PLOTTER: DWG To PDF.pc3]  [STYLE: WHP-Standard.ctb]

AutoCAD SHX Text
81692PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OREGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES: 12/31/2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRICADE



 
Page 1.  FINAL ORDER:  No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners). 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT, 
 

COUNTY OF LINCOLN, STATE OF OREGON 
 

 
IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING COMMISSION FILE NO.   ) 
1-NB-21/2-CUP-21, AN APPLICATION FOR DESIGN REVIEW  )  FINAL 
AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPROVAL FOR “THE   )  ORDER 
WHALER AT NYE BEACH,” AS SUBMITTED BY RIC RABOURN  ) 
(HALLMARK INNS & RESORTS (OWNER))     ) 
              
  
ORDER APPROVING DESIGN REVIEW AND A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT under the 
design guidelines for the Historic Nye Beach Design Review District and Conditional Use Permit 
approval criteria for a 25-guest room hotel with a café, bar, office and lobby space (identified as 
“The Whaler at Nye Beach”).  Two (2) existing single-family dwellings will be removed.  The new 
hotel will have a footprint of close to 10,000 square feet.  It is designed as a three-story, multi-
sectional structure with a below grade parking garage.  The hotel will have a total finished floor area 
of 25,669 square feet.  Mechanical equipment will be housed in the parking garage, which along with 
29 parking spaces and a parking lobby encompass an additional 11,110 square feet.  Three (3) at-
grade ADA accessible parking spaces will be provided adjacent to the hotels main entrance, internal 
to the property.  The subject property is identified on Lincoln County Assessor’s Tax Map 11-11-08-
BB as Tax Lots 15902 & 15903 (33 SW Elizabeth St; 39 SW Elizabeth St; and 41 SW Elizabeth St). 
The site is 26,000+/- sq. ft. in size. 
 
WHEREAS: 

 
1.) The Planning Commission has duly accepted the application filed consistent with the 
Newport Zoning Ordinance (No. 1308, as amended); and  
 
2.) The Planning Commission has duly held a public hearing on the request for a design review 
and conditional use permit, with a public hearing a matter of record of the Planning Commission 
on April 26, 2021; and 
 
3.) At the public hearing on said application, the Planning Commission received testimony and 
evidence, including testimony and evidence on behalf of the applicant, general public, and 
Community Development Department staff; and 
 
4.) Upon request by a party to the proceeding, the Commission provided an open record period 
before concluding its deliberations on May 24, 2021; and 

 
5.) At the conclusion of said deliberations, after consideration and discussion, the Planning 
Commission, upon a motion duly seconded, APPROVED the request for a design review and 
conditional use permit. 

52



 
Page 2.  FINAL ORDER:  No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners). 

 
 THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED by the City of Newport Planning Commission 
that the attached findings of fact and conclusions (Exhibit "A") support the approval of the request 
with the following condition(s): 
 

1. Approval of this land use permit is based on the submitted written narrative and plans listed 
as Attachments to the staff report.  No use shall occur under this permit other than that which is 
specified within these documents. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant/property owner to 
comply with these documents and the limitations of approval described herein. 
 
2. Applicant/owner shall construct concrete textured crosswalks at the mid-block crossing of 
SW Elizabeth Street, opposite Don and Ann Davis Park, and at the intersection of SW Dolphin 
Street and W Olive Street, in a manner that is substantially similar to existing crosswalks at 
Cliff/Olive Streets and Coast/Olive Streets as depicted on the updated building plans and 
elevation drawings by Abbott Architecture, dated 5/17/21. 
 
3. Applicant/owner shall incorporate stamped concrete as a specialty paving element into the 
building plans for the internal pathways, veranda, and porte-cochere as depicted on the updated 
building plans and elevation drawings by Abbott Architecture, dated 5/17/21. 
 
4. Acorn style light poles shall be installed within public rights-of-way adjoining the subject 
property for safety and security purposes in locations deemed appropriate by the City Engineer. 
 
5. Applicant/owner shall improve SW Dolphin Street in a manner that conforms with the City 
of Newport’s street standards and is roughly proportional to the impact of the development on 
the City’s transportation system.  This may include minor modifications to the scope and nature 
of the frontage improvements depicted on Attachment "A-2."  All required public improvements 
shall be completed prior to occupancy. 
 
6. The applicant shall comply with all applicable building codes, fire codes, and other public 
health and safety regulations to ensure that the use will not be detrimental to the safety and health 
of persons in the neighborhood.  The applicant is responsible for obtaining the necessary 
approvals and permits pertaining to the proposed use.  If the applicant must materially modify the 
size or height of the building to comply with these codes, then a conditional use permit shall be 
submitted to establish that the changes are consistent with the overall development character of 
the neighborhood. 
 
7. Applicant/owner shall install tsunami hazard wayfinding signage in a format and location 
approved by the City prior to occupancy.  Further emergency evacuation information shall be 
posted in hotel common areas to alert employees and guests to the tsunami threat. 
 
 
 
 

53



 
Page 3.  FINAL ORDER:  No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners). 

Accepted and approved this 24th day of May, 2021. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
James Patrick, Chair  
Newport Planning Commission 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Derrick I. Tokos, AICP 
Community Development Director 

54



 

1.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

 EXHIBIT "A" 

  

Case File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1.  This application for design review and conditional use permit approval within the Historic Nye 

Beach Design Review District involves a 25-guest room hotel with a café, bar, office and lobby 

space (identified as “The Whaler at Nye Beach”).  Two (2) existing single-family dwellings will be 

removed.  The new hotel will have a footprint of close to 10,000 square feet.  It is designed as a 

three-story, multi-sectional structure with a below grade parking garage.  The hotel will have a total 

finished floor area of 25,669 square feet.  Mechanical equipment will be housed in the parking 

garage, which along with 29 parking spaces and a parking lobby encompass an additional 11,110 

square feet.  Three (3) at-grade ADA accessible parking spaces will be provided adjacent to the 

hotels main entrance, internal to the property. 

 

2.  Ric Rabourn, 5 Centerpointe Dr., Suite 590, Lake Oswego, OR 97035 (Hallmark Inns & Resorts 

(owner)) submitted an application on April 2, 2021.  The application was deemed complete on the 

date that it was submitted. 

 

3.  The subject property is identified on Lincoln County Assessor’s Tax Map 11-11-08-BB, Tax Lots 

15902 & 15903 (33 SW Elizabeth St; 39 SW Elizabeth St; and 41 SW Elizabeth St).  The site is 

roughly 26,000 sq. ft. in size. 

 

4.  Staff reports the following facts: 
 

a) Plan Designation: Commercial 

b) Zone Designation: C-2/HNBO/"Tourist Commercial (Historic Nye Beach Design 

Review District (HNBO))". 

c) Surrounding Land Uses:  Don and Ann Davis Park to the west, the Newport 

Performing Arts Center to the east, Whaler Motel to the south and Don and Ann 

Davis Park and Pacific Kitchen at Nye Beach (affiliated with Hallmark Inns) to the 

north. 

d) Existing Structures: Two-existing single-family residences operated as vacation 

rental dwellings. 

e) Utilities: All are available to the site. 

f) Development Constraints: Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone. 

g) Past Land Use Actions:  File No. 2-TEP-05, dated 3/24/05, at 39 SW Elizabeth 

Street.  Authorized installation of retaining walls within the public road right-of-way. 
 

5.  Upon acceptance of the application, the Community Development (Planning) Department mailed 

notice of the proposed action on April 6, 2021, to affected property owners required to receive such 

notice by the Newport Municipal Code, and to various city departments, agencies, and public 

utilities.  The notice referenced the criteria by which the application was to be assessed.  The notice 

55



 

2.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

required that written comments on the application be submitted by 12:00 noon on the date of the 

hearing, or be submitted in person at the hearing.  The notice was also published in the Newport 

News-Times on April 16, 2021.  As of April 20, 2021, one comment was received from Robin 

Beckwith who resides in a home southeast of the proposed development (Attachment "H").  The 

applicant also held a voluntary neighborhood meeting on April 22, 2021 to solicit feedback from 

individuals living and working in the surrounding area. 
 

6.  A Planning Staff Report on the application was prepared for the Planning Commission and was 

available to the public on April 22, 2021.  The Planning Staff Report and attachments are hereby 

incorporated by reference into the findings.  The Planning Staff Report attachments included the 

following: 
 

Attachment "A" – Application Form 

Attachment "A-1" – Applicant’s Narrative 

Attachment "A-2" – Building Plans and Elevation Drawings of the Proposed Addition * 

Attachment "A-3" – Invitation to Neighborhood Meeting (Optional, Applicant Initiated) 

Attachment "B" – Public Hearing Notice 

Attachment "C" – Zoning Map of HNBO 

Attachment "D" – Aerial Map of Property Showing Utilities 

Attachment "E" – Aerial Map Showing Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone 

Attachment "F" – HNBO Design Review Guidelines and Standards 

Attachment "G" – HNBO Design Review Glossary and Illustrations 

Attachment "H" – Email from Robin Beckwith, dated 4/10/21 
 

* Note:  Reduced for copying purposes.  Full size plans were available online at: 

https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/cdd/default.asp or at the Community Development 

Department. 

 

7.  The Planning Commission received and reviewed written comment from the individuals listed 

below after the Planning Staff Report was prepared.  Their testimony is hereby incorporated by 

reference into the findings: 
 

• Email from Norm Ferber, dated 4/22/21 

• Email and letter from Jan Kaplan, dated 4/26/21 

• Email from Wendy Engler, dated 4/26/21 

• Letter from Oregon Shores Conservation Coalition. Dated 4/26/21 

 

8.  At its April 26, 2021 meeting, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and took testimony 

on the application.  Chair Patrick asked for declarations of ex-parte contact, bias, or conflict of 

interest.  No challenges to the jurisdiction of the Commission were made.  The minutes of the April 

26, 2021 hearing are hereby incorporated by reference into the findings. 

 

9.  The following individuals testified in person during the course of the public hearing: Ric 

Rabourn, Hallmark Inns & Suites (applicant), Michael Abbott, Architect (applicant’s representative), 

Wendy Engler, Jan Kaplan, Tim Emery, and Catherine Briggs. A summary of their testimony is 

included in the hearing minutes. 

 

56

https://www.newportoregon.gov/dept/cdd/default.asp


 

3.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

10.  In their written testimony, the Oregon Shores Conservation Coalition requested the Planning 

Commission leave the record open to allow for the submission of additional evidence, argument, or 

testimony.  When such requests are received the Planning Commission is obligated to continue the 

hearing for at least seven days pursuant to NMC 14.52.090(D) and ORS 197.763(6).  After taking 

testimony, the Commission closed the public hearing and continued its deliberations to May 24, 

2021.  The Commission further provided that written testimony would be accepted for seven (7) days 

(i.e. until 5:00pm on May 3, 2021), followed by a seven (7) day rebuttal period where responses to 

the new testimony would be accepted, and an additional seven (7) days for applicant’s final 

argument.  No new testimony was received by the 5:00pm May 3, 2021 deadline.  The applicant 

chose to use their final argument as an opportunity to address conditions recommended in the staff 

report.  This consisted of the following information, which is incorporated by reference into the 

findings. 

 

• Email from Michael Abbott summarizing the plan revisions, dated 5/17/21 

• Updated building plans and elevation drawings by Abbott Architecture, dated 5/17/21 

 

11.  The applicant is seeking design review and conditional use permit approval to construct a 25-

unit hotel with a common area, office, and food services.  The project is identified as “The Whaler at 

Nye Beach.” The property is situated immediately north of the existing Whaler Hotel.  Two existing 

single-family residences, operated as vacation rentals, will be removed.  The new hotel will have a 

footprint of close to 10,000 square feet.  It is designed as a three-story, multi-sectional structure with 

a below grade parking garage.  The hotel will have a total finished floor area of 25,669 square feet.  

Mechanical equipment will be housed in the parking garage, which along with 29 parking spaces and 

a parking lobby encompass an additional 11,110 square feet.  Three (3) at-grade ADA accessible 

parking spaces will be provided adjacent to the hotels main entrance, internal to the property.  

Vehicle access is available from SW Dolphin Street with an initial driveway access to the parking 

garage and an at-grade driveway that connects with the existing Whaler Hotel parking lot. 

 

Guestrooms face northwest and west, across Olive and Elizabeth Streets and Don and Ann Davis 

Park.  New sidewalk will be constructed along the south side of Olive and east side of Elizabeth 

Street, with a new mid-block crosswalk to align with the pathway entrance to the Park.  A crosswalk 

will also be constructed at the intersection of SW Dolphin Street and Olive.  The perimeter of the 

property will be landscaped and a veranda for a main floor café is incorporated between the building 

and street, with connections to pedestrian paths.  Upper floor units include decks.  The main roof of 

the building sections is at a 6:12 pitch, broken up with dormers at a more gradual 3:12 pitch.  The 

peak height of the building is 40-feet from finished grade. The building is composed of three 

sections.  Its southern component is roughly 55-ft x 40-ft in size and is oriented in an east-west 

fashion.  This portion of the hotel includes eight (8) guestrooms, a kitchen, and office space.  The 

middle component of the hotel is approximately 45-ft x 72-ft in size, with a northwesterly to 

southeasterly orientation.  This area includes the hotel lobby, living room, fireplace, with a second-

floor library loft and two (2) large guestroom suites on the third floor.  The northern component of 

the hotel is 90-ft x 40-ft in size, and is positioned in a northeasterly to southwesterly orientation.  

This portion of the hotel includes 15 guest rooms and a main floor bar.  A site plan and architectural 

elevations illustrating the proposed improvements is enclosed as Attachment "A-2". 

 

 

 

57



 

4.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

 

12.  The proposed project requires design review and conditional use permit approval by the 

Planning Commission because the building exceeds 35-ft in height and 65-ft in length, which is the 

limit that can be approved ministerially by staff under the design standards (NMC 14.30.060(B)(1)).  

Since the Planning Commission is the designated approval body, a Type III review is required (NMC 

14.52.030(B)).  A Type III Conditional Use Permit is also required because the hotel is a commercial 

use that exceeds 2,000 square feet of gross floor area (NMC 14.30.090(A)(1)).  To obtain design 

review approval the applicant must demonstrate that the proposed development is consistent with 

Design Guidelines No. 1 through No. 9 of the document entitled "Newport Design Review:  

Guidelines and Standards," effective July 29, 2015 and incorporated by reference by Newport 

Municipal Code (NMC) Section 14.30.030.  Criteria for the conditional use permit are found in 

NMC Section 14.34.050. 

 

 CONCLUSIONS 

 

1.  With regard to guidelines established for the Historic Nye Beach Design Review Overlay District 

for approving the design review request, the Planning Commission makes the following conclusions: 

 

 A.)  Design Guideline 1: Contextually-Appropriate Design 

 

Intent: For residential development, the architectural heritage of the Nye Beach area - as 

documented in historical photos and drawings or by photographs presented in support of the 

development - shall be maintained. 

 

Approaches: 

• New development should utilize roof types common to the district, such as steep 

pitched gable, multiple lower pitched gable, or hip. 

• New development should include in the design common main facade elements (such 

as porches, verandas, sunrooms and/or other architectural/design features as 

identified in the design standards or as documented to exist within the design review 

district). 

• Buildings shall feature variety in building shape, height, roof lines, setbacks, and 

design features consistent with the design guidelines. 

• For multiple family development (greater than 2 units), trash collection areas shall 

be screened. 

 

Reference: Illustrations #2, #3, #4, #5, and #7. 

  

i.)  This guideline applies to residential development, and is not applicable to the project. 

 

ii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

B.)  Design Guideline 2: Building Scale 

 

Intent: Commercial building elements oriented towards a public or private street shall 

incorporate specific elements that contribute to the established scale of the district and 

support an active streetscape. 

58



 

5.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

Approaches: 

• Commercial buildings (excluding portions of a hotel/motel where guest rooms are on 

the ground floor) shall support retail visibility and appropriate district scale by 

utilizing banks of windows with multiple small windows (less than 20 square feet) 

and/or large windows with multiple panes along all sides abutting a public right-of-

way. 

• The contextual scale of new large commercial buildings over two stories shall be 

reduced by using horizontal or vertical divisions and stepped roof lines. 

• Buildings greater than one story in height shall be designed with canopies, 

balconies, offsets in the building facade along each public right-of-way, or other 

architectural/design features that reduce the building's vertical emphasis. 

• Buildings greater than 2 stories, and/or longer than forty feet (40’) shall include two 

or more of the following elements to break down the scale of the building: 

o A significant offset (3’ minimum depth, 8’ minimum width) in the full building 

massing (Illustration # 10). 

o A step-back (6’ minimum) of floors above the second floor. 

o Subdivision into a series of distinct building masses, articulated as separate 

structures. 

o Multiple ground floor entries at 30’ maximum spacing. 
 

Reference: Illustrations #6, # 7 and #8. 
 

i.)  The hotel building has a contextual scale by incorporation of horizontal and vertical 

divisions including multiple stepped roof lines.  The overall building massing has been 

designed to break apart multiple forms along the elevations and plan. The strategy of 

breaking the building into three separate building forms with independent gable roofs 

achieves the massing breakdown necessary to establish scale with the district.  The hotel 

building also utilizes canopies and balconies along the public right of way.  The hotel 

building incorporates a public oriented central café veranda to further support an active 

streetscape along Elizabeth & Olive Streets. This central veranda has two pathways from the 

sidewalk and will encourage public use for café seating. 
 

ii.)  The applicant’s architectural elevations illustrate how this design guideline has been 

satisfied (Sheets A201 – A205, Attachment "A-2"). Large multi-pane windows have been 

incorporated into ground floor elevations abutting public rights-of-way even though portions 

of the structure are exempt from that requirement because they include guestrooms on the 

ground floor.  The applicant notes that they have reduced the contextual scale of the building 

by varying the roof line across three distinct segments of the structure and by incorporating 

into the design multiple, stepped roof lines.  Balconies have been incorporated where the 

building faces public rights-of-way and the structure is subdivided into distinct building 

masses with significant off-sets to reduce massing.   
 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

C.)  Design Guideline 3: Roof Design 

 

Intent: Roofs should have similar configuration and character to historic styles in the 

district. 

59



 

6.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

Approaches: 

• Roof slopes on commercial projects shall be between 5:12 and 12:12 unless there is 

a flat roof with parapet. 

• Mechanical equipment shall be screened and integrated into the roof design. 

• Roof shapes shall be consistent with traditional styles found in the neighborhood. 

• A standing seam is recommended for metal roofs. 

• Gable and hip roof forms are recommended. 

• Parapet walls shall be integrated into the building. 
 

Reference: Illustrations #2, #5, #6 and #7 

 

i.)  The hotel roof plan (Sheet A104, Attachment "A-2") shows the main roof as 6:12 in pitch 

with multiple dormer breaks. Some lower roofs are treated with roof parapets to help give the 

building a smaller massing effect.  All mechanical equipment will be located in non-rooftop 

locations within the building forms.  Roof configuration is that of a traditional gable with 

multiple dormers.  The gable ends break into smaller forms and cross-gables to further 

reduce the scale of the roof.  Parapet walls are integrated into the building and are 

strategically located to break up the massing of the overall building form. 

 

ii.)  As noted by the applicant, the 6:12 gable roof pitch is common in Nye Beach and within 

the slope range that is permitted.  Mechanical equipment will be housed below the structure 

(Sheet A105, Attachment "A-2").  Further, parapet walls are integrated into the design as an 

accent. 

 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

D.)  Design Guideline 4: Commercial Buildings Define Continuous Street Edge 

 

Intent: Support safe and “walkable” streets by creating a traditional town pattern of 

commercial buildings lining public streets. Create high visibility between commercial 

interiors and public ways. 

 

Approaches: 

• In commercial areas, commercial buildings shall abut the front property line. 

Allowable exceptions to the requirement to abut the front property line include areas 

where the existing buildings adjacent to the property are set back from the property 

line, where a pedestrian oriented feature such as a courtyard, patio, landscaped area 

with seating or outdoor cafe seating is included, or where severe topography or an 

easement precludes the building abutting the front property line. 

• Commercial buildings shall abut a side yard property line where possible except to 

allow access for parking or fire egress, the side abuts a zoning district which 

requires a side yard, or a setback is required for ocean front lots. 

• Separation between building walls at the street level shall be avoided except for 

pedestrian and parking access, or a pedestrian oriented feature such as a courtyard, 

patio, landscaped area with seating or outdoor cafe seating is included. 

• Front and side yard setbacks, where they exist, shall be fully landscaped or shall 

provide a pedestrian oriented feature as described previously. 

60



 

7.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

• On commercial, institutional, public, and multiple family residential (with three or 

more units) buildings, a primary entrance to the building shall face the frontage 

street. Entries from off-street parking lots shall not be made more prominent than the 

entrance from the street. 

• Trash collection areas shall be screened. 

 

i.)  The hotel building abuts the front property line along Elizabeth & Olive Streets.  The 

incorporation of a patio/veranda directly engages with the pedestrian sidewalk along the 

street edges.  The hotel incorporates a central veranda that has direct pedestrian access from 

the sidewalks along both Elizabeth & Olive Streets. This central veranda will incorporate 

café seating and a firepit feature to enhance the community experience upon walking past 

and/or arrival.  The hotel yard along the south elevation includes a new ‘accessible’ 

pedestrian walkway that connects the east side of the property to the street. The addition of a 

pedestrian crosswalk further connects to Don Davis Park across Elizabeth Street.  The hotel 

yard along Dolphin Street has incorporated improved pedestrian access via a sidewalk. 

Portions of this yard are utilized for parking access to the sub-building garage and vehicle 

access to the hotel porte-cochere entry.  All yards are fully landscaped including pedestrian 

lighting.  Trash collections for the hotel building will be incorporated into the sub-building 

garage area out of view from the exterior. 

 

ii.)  This guideline requires commercial buildings abut front property lines.  An exception is 

provided where a pedestrian oriented feature is incorporated between the front lot line and 

building.  This includes courtyards, patios and outdoor café seating.  The applicant has 

incorporated a patio/veranda with café seating between the building and front lot lines along 

SW Elizabeth and W Olive Streets in keeping with this requirement (Sheet A100, 

Attachment "A-2").  A corner of the building abuts SW Dolphin Street, which is also a front 

lot line.  As noted by the applicant, where there is a separation between the existing Whaler 

Hotel and new development, a pedestrian walkway has been incorporated to enhance 

connectivity.  Entrances to the hotel lobby face SW Dolphin Street and West Olive Street.  

Trash collection will be located in the sub-grade garage so that it is screened from view from 

public areas by the new building.  The applicant’s site plan (Sheet A100) illustrates that the 

setback areas will be fully landscaped. 

 

E.)  Design Guideline 5: Consistency with Predominant Styles and Features 

 

Intent: Buildings shall generally be compatible in design and appearance with other 

buildings in close proximity by including similar types of architectural features and 

materials. 

 

Approaches: 

• Proposed buildings shall include design features that are consistent with the design 

standards and are similar in nature to buildings in direct proximity to the site. 

• Where the surrounding buildings predominately do not include architectural features 

found in the design standards, the proposed building subject to design review shall 

include architectural features that are common to the district as identified in the 

design standards or by findings documenting similar architectural features found 

within the design review district. 

61



 

8.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

• Where the surrounding buildings predominately do not include architectural features 

found in the design standards or in the design review district, innovation and 

creativity in design may be allowed consistent with the design guidelines. 

• In keeping with traditional styles, where a transition is made in the building’s siding 

material, the transition should occur at an inside corner, rather than an outside 

corner. 

 

Reference: Illustrations # 7, #8, and #11 

 

i.)  The hotel building utilizes traditional building forms such as gable roofs, cross gable 

features and multiple dormers.  The hotel building features the traditional design strategy of 

‘base, middle and top’ along the elevations. Along the street edge a building ‘base’ is in the 

form of a solid stone wall supporting the patio/veranda and central café veranda. The 

building ‘middle’ is made up of the first-floor walls that separates from the upper hotel floors 

by use of a siding material and color break along with traditional trim feature at floor level. 

The building ‘top’ 2 floors is then made up of traditional shake siding which further breaks 

the building into smaller forms found within the design district. See exterior elevations on 

Sheet A205.  The primary building materials used are those found around the district 

including:  Stone, Cedar horizontal plank siding (clear) and cedar shake (charcoal grey).  The 

roof will be an architectural comp roof in black oak. See finish samples on Sheet A205.  The 

hotel window fenestration is composed of traditional vertical and square oriented windows. 

Larger windows along the middle public spaces of the hotel have been broken down by 

mullions to also fit with the scale of the district.  Windows and doors will be traditionally 

trimmed in wide casement to also fit within the traditional detailing of northwest coastal 

architecture.  The hotel will also feature timber trellising at entryways and above the central 

café veranda. The timber will be stained with a tint similar to local buildings.  See exterior 

elevation sheets A201 – A205 for graphic representation of all of the above strategies. 

 

ii.) The applicant’s narrative, site plan (Sheet A100, Attachment "A-2") and architectural 

elevation Sheets A201 – A205 illustrate that the new hotel building has been designed in a 

manner that incorporates architectural features common to the district as required by this 

guideline. 

 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

F.)  Design Guideline 6: Parking Orientation and Building Form 

 

Intent: For commercial and multiple family residential (greater than 2 dwelling units) 

projects, the building massing shall not be shaped by off-street parking. Building massing 

should generally take traditional forms that are observed in the district, the historical record 

of Nye Beach, or that can be demonstrated to be consistent with the dominant architectural 

styles of the district. 

 

Approaches: 

On-site parking shall be at the rear or side of the building or below street grade underneath 

the building with access via alleys or interior streets unless, based on review of the project, 

the review authority determines that topography such as steep slopes precludes side or rear 

62



 

9.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

parking.  Parking garages shall utilize similar architectural details as the main building.  

Shared parking facilities are allowed and are encouraged.  Views of parking areas from 

adjacent residential and commercial uses shall be screened through the use of landscaping 

and/or fencing.  Pedestrian paths shall be clearly defined. Textured pavings are preferred 

over painted stripes for defining walkways. 

 

Reference: Illustrations #6 and #9. 

 

i.)  The hotel building primary orientation is towards the street frontages of Elizabeth and 

Olive Streets.  The hotel incorporates a central café veranda that engages with pedestrian 

sidewalks along both streets. The street side of the hotel will have this entrance as secondary 

to guest to hotel but primary to a passing pedestrian. The primary hotel guest entry will be 

along the porte-cochere side of the building for a more traditional hotel guest experience. The 

porte-cochere entry is directly engaged with the public street side by use of direct site lines 

through the interior lobby of the hotel. This will further enhance the hotel guest experience 

by direct building engagement to the public street and Nye Beach beyond.  The hotel 

incorporates a sub-building garage which eliminates the impact of onsite surface parking. 

This strategy benefits the hotel guests and keeps the pedestrian oriented feel of this property 

from views from the Nye Beach district.  See ‘Architectural Site Plan’ on Sheet A100 for 

locations of above. 

 

ii.)  Off-street parking is provided in a below grade garage except as required to conform 

with ADA requirements, and landscaping is proposed such that the entrance to the parking 

garage will be screened from view (particularly as the landscaping matures).  Textured 

pavings are preferred over painted stripes for defining walkways.  The crosswalks at Cliff 

/Olive Streets and Coast/Olive Streets are an example of the textured walkways used in the 

district.  The applicant’s amended Architectural Plans identify that they are prepared to 

install textured crosswalks to align with these examples and the Commission agrees that such 

a change is conforms with the guidelines. 

 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

G.)  Design Guideline 7: Connected Pedestrian Network 

 

Intent: Maintain and reinforce the walking environment of Nye Beach with a network of 

public sidewalks and private paths. 

 

Approaches: 

• For commercial projects, provide pedestrian paths to create linkages between 

adjoining public and private spaces. 

• Circulation routes shall be continuous and integrated into the larger pedestrian 

circulation network. 

• Specialty paving is encouraged. 

 

Reference: Illustrations #6 and #9. 

 

 

63



 

10.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

i.)  This hotel project will reinforce the pedestrian network by adding new public sidewalks 

along the street edges of Elizabeth and Olive Streets.  The development will also be adding 

two new public crosswalks from the sidewalks to create a new connection to Nye Beach 

district and Don Davis park. Further pedestrian enhancement will be extension of the 

sidewalk to the performing arts center at the East side of the property.  Pedestrians will also 

be able to engage the public street of the hotel by the addition of an accessible pathway along 

the South edge of the building.  New sidewalks on both sides of Dolphin street will give 

further access around all sides of the new hotel building.  Pedestrian pathways have been 

incorporated along all sides of the hotel building to create a safe human scale feel to the site. 

 See ‘Architectural Site Plan’ on Sheet A100 for locations of above. 

 

ii.)  The applicant’s site plan (Sheet A100, Attachment "A-2") illustrates how integrated 

pedestrian pathways will be constructed in both the public and private space.  Like the 

previous guideline, use of specialty paving is encouraged, and the applicant’s updated 

building plans and elevation drawings illustrate that the veranda, walkways and porte-

cochere will be treated with stamped concrete pavers.  The Commission concurs that this 

type of treatment is consistent with the guideline.  New public sidewalk along W Olive, SW 

Elizabeth, and SW Dolphin Streets will be concrete, consistent with the City’s sidewalk 

standards (WHPacific Sheet, Attachment "A-2"). 

 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

H.)  Design Guideline 8: Exterior Lighting and Glare Avoidance 

 

Intent: Provide a well-lit public environment, while minimizing the incidence of glare. 

 

Approaches: 

• Exterior permanent lighting for commercial projects shall be restrained by using 

lighting features that minimize the impact of lighting such as full-cut off fixtures, low 

wattage bulbs, and/or recessed or shielded lighting, such that no direct glare occurs 

onto public right-of-way or adjacent property. 

• Where building-mounted lighting – wall sconces, awning-mounted downlights, etc. - 

is used to illuminate an adjacent public sidewalk, the lighting source itself should be 

recessed or screened to avoid uplight and glare. Targeted uplighting may be used to 

draw attention to a specific design element provided it is directed at that feature. 

• Areas used extensively at night shall only be illuminated to the extent necessary for 

safety and security. 

• On-site lighting shall be related to the site and retained on the site by directing the 

light downward, recessing the light, and/or shielding the light. Lighting fixtures shall 

complement the architectural character of the building. 

• If landscape lighting is used, the landscape lighting shall be restrained by using 

lighting techniques (i.e. recessing the light, shielding the light, using low wattage 

bulbs) that minimize the impact of light. 

• The use of light poles similar in appearance to the light poles installed as part of the 

Nye Beach Streetscape Project is acceptable for parking lot lighting and other 

lighting for which a light pole is used. 

 

64



 

11.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

i.)  The hotel site lighting design considers a well-lit, warm and welcoming feel.  The hotel 

site lighting fixtures have been carefully selected as no-glare and/or dark-sky compliant.  See 

drawing Sheet L200 for lighting locations and types. 

 

ii.)  Building mounted and accent lighting options shown on Sheet L200, Attachment "A-2" 

are shielded and/or recessed consistent with the guideline requirements and are oriented such 

that they will not direct glare onto public rights-of-way or adjacent property. No light poles 

are proposed; however, a pole(s) may be needed for safety purposes, particularly at the 

intersection of SW Dolphin and Olive Streets.  The guideline calls for light poles to match 

the Nye Beach Streetscape Project, which in this case would be acorn style lighting, the 

nearest example of which is at Cliff and Olive Streets.  The applicant has added a detail to 

their plan set for this type of lighting, and the Commission agrees that such lighting should 

be installed where needed for safety purposes. 

 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

I.)  Design Guideline 9: Requirements for solar access 

 

Intent: Ensure new development projects do not excessively shade neighboring properties. 

 

Approaches: 

• Commercial and multi-family buildings shall be massed to avoid casting a direct 

shadow onto the public sidewalk across a bordering street. 

• The third story on a commercial or multi-family building shall be stepped back to 

minimize shadowing of adjoining properties. 

• Solar impacts shall be assessed for the following times 

o Time of year: between February 21 and October 21 

o Time of day: between 10:00 am and 2:00 pm 

• Projects of greater than 2 stories shall submit a simple solar shading sketch that 

shows conformance with this standard. 

 

Reference: Illustration #12. 

 

i.)  The hotel building sits by itself across from neighboring Nye Beach properties and 

buildings. Mid-day shade on neighboring buildings does not exist.  The hotel building will 

only shade public sidewalks to the West and North along Elizabeth and Olive Streets at mid-

day during fall to spring.  See the attached graphic analysis of building shading at public 

sidewalks during Summer Solstice, Spring and Fall Equinox at the Noon hour (3 graphic 

pages attached). 

 

ii.)  The three graphics referenced by the applicant are included in the last three pages of their 

narrative (Attachment "A-1").  They demonstrate that the shadow patterns attributed to the 

three-story hotel building will not extend so far that they would shadow walkways on the far 

side of a bordering street nor will they impact neighboring properties. 

 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this guideline has been met. 

 

65



 

12.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

2.  With regard to the criteria for approving a Conditional Use Permit, the Planning Commission 

makes the following conclusions: 

 

A.)  NMC 14.35.050(A), Criteria for Approval of a Conditional Use Permit, the public 

facilities can adequately accommodate the proposed use. 

 

i.)  Public facilities include city water sewer and street services.  City water service is 

available via 8-inch lines located within W Olive Street, a portion of SW Elizabeth Street, 

and SW Dolphin Street.  A fire hydrant is in place at the east corner of the intersection of W 

Olive and SW Dolphin Street, proximate to the development site.  Wastewater service is 

available via 8-inch gravity mains along SW Elizabeth Street, W Olive Street, and SW 

Dolphin Street, although the main in SW Dolphin Street would need to be extended north for 

it to be a viable option. A structured storm drainage system is in place along W Olive Street 

and SW Elizabeth Streets.  The location of the utilities is depicted on an aerial map of the 

project site (Attachment "D"). 

 

ii.)  Street access is available to the property by way of an extension of underdeveloped SW 

Dolphins Street and the applicant’s site plan shows how that could be accomplished (Sheet 

A100, Attachment "A-2").  The applicant’s development generates sufficient traffic that there 

may be justification in requiring they contribute toward the construction of SW Dolphin as a 

through street.  The city owns much of the property on the east side of the undeveloped 

street, and a proportional, joint funding agreement would need to be worked out for the 

connection to become a reality.  Terrain constraints are another consideration.  The 

applicant/owner and City are in discussions regarding what a through street design would 

look like and how to equitably pay for its construction.  That issue need not be resolved with 

this permit.  The bar for conditional use approval is that public facilities can adequately 

accommodate the proposed use.  With respect to water, sewer, and stormwater services, there 

are ample connection points to serve the development.  For streets, the SW Dolphin Street 

right-of-way is available to meet the developments needs and it can be improved to 

adequately accommodate the proposed use.  The developer is responsible for improving the 

street in a manner that is roughly proportional to the impact of the project and a condition of 

approval to that effect has been incorporated into the decision. 

 

iii.) Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this standard has been met. 

 

B.)  NMC 14.35.050(B), the request complies with the requirements of the underlying zone or 

overlay zone. 

 

i.)  The underlying zone that the subject property is located in is a C-2/"Tourist Commercial" 

District.  Overlay zones that apply to the property include the Historic Nye Beach Design 

Review District (HNBO) and the Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone (Attachments "C" and 

"E").  Compliance with HNBO requirements is addressed with the design guideline analysis 

above. 

 

ii.)  The C-2 district has a zero-lot line setback, with a lot coverage allowance of up to 85% 

of the parcel size.  The minimum parcel size is 5,000 square feet (3,000 sq. ft. in the HNBO), 

the maximum building height is 50-feet, and the density limit for hotels/motels is 750 square 

66



 

13.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

feet of land area per unit.  These density and dimensional standards are listed in Table "A," 

NMC 14.11.010 and NMC 14.13.010.  A requirement of 50 sq. ft. of patio space per hotel 

unit is met with the proposed veranda (NMC 14.11.020).  The applicant’s site plan and 

architectural elevations illustrate how these standards are being satisfied (Attachment "A-2"). 

 

iii.)  Off-street parking standards for hotel/motel units is one space per unit, plus a space for 

the manager, meaning 26 spaces are required (NMC 14.14.030(25)).  Two of the spaces must 

be ADA compliant, with one being van accessible with an access isle (NMC 14.14.050).  The 

HNBO allows new development to claim an on-street parking credit that reduces the number 

of required off-street parking spaces by one space for every on-street space abutting the 

property, with some limitations (NMC 14.30.100(A)(6)).  The applicant is not pursuing an 

on-street parking credit, even though a credit could be an option along SW Elizabeth Street.  

The applicant’s revised plans show 27 off-street spaces in a below grade garage.  Three 

additional ADA spaces are shown outside the building, near the entrance to the lobby.  As 

drawn, the applicant is showing exactly 40% of the total spaces as compact, which is the 

maximum percentage that the City will allow (NMC 14.14.060).  Given the above, the 

Commission has sufficient evidence before it to conclude that it is feasible the applicant can 

meet the parking standards. 

 

iv.)  A total of 10% of the lot area is required to be landscaped with an emphasis on it being 

placed along a street or other property frontage.  The applicant’s landscaping plan (Sheet 

L100, Attachment "A-2") illustrates how this standard is being met. 

 

v.)  The Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone requires commercial development provide all 

weather pedestrian access from the buildings to adjacent public rights-of-way, and the 

applicant’s site plan illustrates how pedestrian linkages, both external and internal to the 

property, will be enhanced with this development (Sheet A100, Attachment "A-2").  

Developments must also provide wayfinding signage in a format and location approved by 

the City and they must place emergency evacuation information in common areas to alert 

employees and guests to the tsunami threat.  The applicant, with their resubmittal, has 

expressed a willingness to address these requirements and it is appropriate that conditions of 

approval be imposed to ensure that they are implemented. 

 

vi.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this standard has been met. 

 

C.)  NMC 14.35.050(C), the proposed use does not have an adverse impact greater than 

existing uses on nearby properties, or impacts can be ameliorated through imposition of 

conditions of approval.  For the purpose of this criterion, “adverse impact” is the potential 

adverse physical impact of a proposed Conditional Use including, but not limited to, traffic 

beyond the carrying capacity of the street, unreasonable noise, dust, or loss of air quality. 

 

i.)  There are a number of hotels in the vicinity of the subject site, including the existing 

Whaler Hotel, the Elizabeth Street Inn, and Shilo Inns.  It is reasonable to rely upon the 

presence of such uses to conclude that the proposed hotel will not have adverse impacts 

greater than existing uses in the area relative to noise, dust, air quality, etc.  SW Elizabeth 

and W Olive Streets are collector roadways designed to handle large volumes of vehicle 

traffic, and the applicant site plan (Sheet A100, Attachment "A-2") illustrates how they will 

67



 

14.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

be improving pedestrian mobility as a result of the project.  SW Dolphin Street will need to 

be improved by the applicant to accommodate the planned development and the applicant’s 

plans serve as evidence that they are prepared to make a substantial investment in the 

roadway.  Further, as previously noted, a condition requiring the applicant/owner improve the 

street commensurate to the impact of the project will ensure that this standard is met. 

 

vi.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that this standard has been met. 

 

D.)  NMC 14.35.050(D), a proposed building or building modification is consistent with the 

overall development character of the area with regard to building size and height, 

considering both existing buildings and potential buildings allowable as uses permitted 

outright. 

 

i.)  In evaluating the application for compliance with this standard, the Planning Commission 

considered existing and potential development that can occur in Nye Beach.  This parcel is 

situated at the far southwest corner of the HNBO, bordered by the existing Whaler Hotel to 

the south, which is just outside of the overlay, and the Newport Performing Arts Center to 

the east, which is inside the HNBO but was constructed in the late 1980’s before the overlay 

was established.  The Performing Arts Center is larger than the proposed development with 

an average peak height in excess of 46-ft.  The existing Whaler Hotel, which is three stories 

in height, is roughly 35-ft in height and is narrower and more linear than the proposed 

development. 

 

ii.)  The pallete of exterior construction materials is depicted on Sheet A 204, Attachment 

"A-2" is consistent with what is found on other commercial properties in the district, 

including the Inn at Nye Beach, which was the last project approved using the design 

guidelines.  That project has a peak height of 47 feet, 3 inches and is more linear than the 

proposed development, in part because the design guidelines were updated to require that 

large buildings be segmented.  Other comparable commercial development in the district 

with respect to size and height include the Sylvia Beach Hotel (also three stories facing the 

street), the Archway Place mixed use development at 42.25-ft in height, and the three-story 

commercial property at 107 SW Coast at 39-ft in height. 

 

iii.)  Considering the above, the Commission concludes that the proposed building at 40-ft in 

height, with three distinct building segments that break up its visible mass, is consistent with 

the overall development character of the area with regard to building size and height. 

 

 OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

Based on the staff report, the application material, and other evidence and testimony in the 

record, the Planning Commission concludes that the request complies with the design guidelines 

established for HNBO design review and conditional use permit approval.  The request is; therefore, 

APPROVED subject to the following condition(s). 

 

1. Approval of this land use permit is based on the submitted written narrative and plans listed 

as Attachments to the staff report.  No use shall occur under this permit other than that 

which is specified within these documents. It shall be the responsibility of the 

68



 

15.  EXHIBIT "A” Findings for Final Order for File No. 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21 – Ric Rabourn (Hallmark Inns & Resorts, owners).  

applicant/property owner to comply with these documents and the limitations of approval 

described herein. 

 

2. Applicant/owner shall construct concrete textured crosswalks at the mid-block crossing 

of SW Elizabeth Street, opposite Don and Ann Davis Park, and at the intersection of SW 

Dolphin Street and W Olive Street, in a manner that is substantially similar to existing 

crosswalks at Cliff/Olive Streets and Coast/Olive Streets as depicted on the updated 

building plans and elevation drawings by Abbott Architecture, dated 5/17/21. 

 

3. Applicant/owner shall incorporate stamped concrete as a specialty paving element into 

the building plans for the internal pathways, veranda, and porte-cochere as depicted on 

the updated building plans and elevation drawings by Abbott Architecture, dated 5/17/21. 

 

4. Acorn style light poles shall be installed within public rights-of-way adjoining the subject 

property for safety and security purposes in locations deemed appropriate by the City 

Engineer. 

 

5. Applicant/owner shall improve SW Dolphin Street in a manner that conforms with the 

City of Newport’s street standards and is roughly proportional to the impact of the 

development on the City’s transportation system.  This may include minor modifications 

to the scope and nature of the frontage improvements depicted on Attachment "A-2."  All 

required public improvements shall be completed prior to occupancy. 

 

6. The applicant shall comply with all applicable building codes, fire codes, and other 

public health and safety regulations to ensure that the use will not be detrimental to the 

safety and health of persons in the neighborhood.  The applicant is responsible for 

obtaining the necessary approvals and permits pertaining to the proposed use.  If the 

applicant must materially modify the size or height of the building to comply with these 

codes, then a conditional use permit shall be submitted to establish that the changes are 

consistent with the overall development character of the neighborhood. 

 

7. Applicant/owner shall install tsunami hazard wayfinding signage in a format and location 

approved by the City prior to occupancy.  Further emergency evacuation information 

shall be posted in hotel common areas to alert employees and guests to the tsunami 

threat. 

69


	Planning Commission Regular Session Agenda
	2018-4263 - Draft PC Reg Session Minutes 05-10-2021
	2018-4265 - File 4-CUP-21 Staff Report.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment A.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment B.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment C.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment D.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment E.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment F.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment G.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment H.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment I.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment J.pdf
	2018-4265 - Attachment K.pdf
	2018-4265 - File 4-CUP-21 Draft Final Order.pdf
	2018-4265 - File 4-CUP-21 Draft Findings.pdf
	2018-4270 - Staff Memo.pdf
	2018-4270 - Michael Abbott Email 5.17.21.pdf
	2018-4270 - Updated Whaler at Nye Beach Plan Set 5.17.21.pdf
	2018-4270 - File # 1-NB-21 -- 2-CUP-21 Final Order.pdf
	2018-4270 - File # 1-NB-21 -- 2-CUP-21 Findings.pdf



